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THE TOMORROW TRUST IS A NON-PROFIT ORGANISATION

CREATED IN 2005 TO SUPPORT ORPHANED AND VULNERABLE

CHILDREN AND YOUTH. WE DESIGN AND DELIVER WORLD-CLASS

HOLISTIC EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMES, SUPPORTING

ORPHANED AND VULNERABLE CHILDREN AND YOUTH FROM

THE PLAYGROUND TO THEIR PROFESSIONS.

WE WORK WITH GOVERNMENT, BUSINESS AND ORDINARY

SOUTH AFRICANS TO REALISE THE VISION OF A SOCIETY

WITH CONSCIOUS AND HOLISTICALLY EDUCATED LEADERS.
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THROUGH GROWTH AND 
COMPASSION, FOR SOCIAL 
JUSTICE, WE LAUNCHED 
TOMORROW IN 2019.

Tomorrow Trust launched its new three year strategy called 
“Launching Tomorrow” in 2019. When I joined Tomorrow 
Trust in March 2018, I found a remarkable organisation with 
an engaged board, skilled staff and a legacy of real impact. 
As the founder and board expertly managed the tricky 
transition of leadership, a key question was what I would 
change? My answer was that I would not change anything, 
but we would. 

After listening to staff, beneficiaries and alumni throughout 
2018, we were ready to start 2019 with a clear plan; guided 
by ‘new’ values of Growth, Compassion and Social justice; a 
subtle evolution from our previous focus on Respect, Team 
Work and Family Values. From 2019 to 2021, we committed 
to delivering world-class holistic education programmes 
that were evidence-based, growing our revenue and reach 
by 10 per cent and advocating for holistic education for all.  
So how did we do in our first year? 

Let’s start with our values. 

HOW OUR STAFF AND BENEFICIARIES GREW  
AS INDIVIDUALS

Learning science argues that we develop under the 
combined presence of challenge and support. We 
encouraged staff to take on study opportunities as well 
as new projects in their work. We maintained our rigorous 
bi-annual board review process with our students, and we 
redesigned our programme team with self-developed job 
descriptions and a unified tertiary and holiday school ‘circle.’ 
In our holiday and Saturday schools, we implemented our 
SHIFT technology programme for Grade 8s and broadened 
our ability to offer psycho-social and career support to our 
learners. You will see in the tertiary programme we had 
some of our best results to date! 

JAMES DONALD

HOW WE DEMONSTRATED AND EXPERIENCED 
COMPASSION

Again, learning science tells us that we perform better in an 
environment where we feel seen and heard; as adults and as 
children. With this in mind, we implemented weekly check-
ins creating more spaces to ‘see’ each other. In student and 
alumni workshops, we demonstrated how to be vulnerable 
and on Saturdays our little wings facilitators made extra time 
to listen to our learners.  

We refined our performance review process, including 
360-degree feedback on each other and the organisation, 
and we surveyed staff and beneficiaries. Some talk about 
the importance of ‘tough’ and ‘love’, high expectations in an 
environment with high trust and while we are a long way 
from this ideal we are committed to building this culture. 
Also, we wrapped up a six-month systemic team coaching 
intervention with our programme team. We implemented a 
more structured but less hierarchical set of work processes 
based on self-management principles. 

MESSAGE FROM THE 

CEO
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HOW DID WE UPHOLD OUR 
COMMITMENT TO SOCIAL JUSTICE?

In 2019 we strove to recognise the pervasive 
influence of racism and sexism in our work 
and lives. As our students engaged in 
national debates or challenges arose in the 
office, we did our best to lean into them, 
discuss with them and work to respond to 
their challenges. One of our most highly 
rated tertiary workshops was on gender and 
sex; for example. We have a long way to go 
and can do more. 

As you will read in our Chairman’s report 
2019, we set ourselves ambitious work goals 
and made substantial progress.  In the end, 
it is always about our ability to raise and 
distribute funds for our beneficiaries and to 
do that over our three-year plan we had to 
start by investing in our assets, our staff and 
how we work together. 

I am exceptionally proud of Tomorrow Trust’s 
learners, students, staff and volunteers. Thank 
you for investing in them; the following 
pages speak for themselves. 

In commitment to growth, compassion and 
social justice,

  James
James Donald 
CEO

TOMORROW TRUST – PATHWAYS OF IMPACT

ADVOCATE 
for a holistic education revolution that 

prepares us the 4th Industrial Revolution

GROW 
Revenue and Reach by 10% a year  

while seeking out 10x opportunities 

DELIVER
world leading holistic education 

programmes with proven effectiveness

PATHWAYS 
OF IMPACT

World leading holistic education 
programmes with proven effectiveness

Revenue and Reach by 10% a year  
while seeking out 10x opportunities

For a holistic education revolution that 
prepares us for the 4th Industrial Revolution
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WITH A REFINED VISION AND 
MISSION, WE CONTINUED TO 
REALISE THE FOUNDING PURPOSE 
OF TOMORROW TRUST. 

For 14 years Tomorrow Trust has brought to life the purpose 
as stated in our founding documents; to raise and distribute 
funds for the education of orphaned and vulnerable 
children.

In 2019 we adopted a revised Vision and Mission to realise 
that purpose. You can read the specific new language in 
this report, but we remain true to our goal. We unlock 
South Africa’s potential through holistic education today, 
from playgrounds to professional. To achieve that mission, 
we had set ourselves three goals to guide what we call the 
‘Launching Tomorrow’ 2019 to 2021 plan. The annual report 
gives details on how we performed in 2019 in general, and 
below are some highlights: 

GOAL 1. TO PROVIDE WORLD CLASS HOLISTIC 
EDUCATION THAT IS EVIDENCE-BASED. In 2019, 
Tomorrow Trust researched and reviewed the best education 
programmes in the world.  James hosted an education 
workshop at MIT in Boston and met with leading researchers 
and funders there, as well as in New York and Washington 
DC. In South Africa, Tomorrow Trust co-hosted the first 
Student Success conference, presented at numerous 
conferences as well as visited leading programmes; from 
Cape Town to Mpumalanga. I have observed the SHIFT 
technology programme, for example, and have witnessed 
how Tomorrow Trust’s plans are continually innovating and 
growing.  

GOAL 2. TO GROW OUR REVENUE AND REACH BY TEN 
PER CENT A YEAR WHILE LOOKING FOR TEN TIMES 
THE OPPORTUNITIES.  
The Tomorrow Trust has raised and spent an average of  
R20 Million a year over the past five years, and the Trustees 
pushed the team in 2019 to lay the groundwork to increase 
that significantly. We know this takes time, but quality 

JACK PHALANE

programmes are in dire need and Tomorrow Trust has the 
potential to grow considerably and substantially. Growth is 
a primary focus of the trustees and for James and the team 
going forward. We invited donors such as Pepsico to attend 
board meetings and supported partner breakfasts and other 
events in order to keep growing the organisation. 

GOAL 3. TO ADVOCATE FOR HOLISTIC EDUCATION 
AS THE FOUNDATION FOR THE FOURTH INDUSTRIAL 
REVOLUTION. With world-class programmes, Tomorrow 
Trust must build its public profile to raise more money as 
well as to have a broader impact; one that extends beyond 
our beneficiaries. In 2019 Tomorrow Trust met with all of the 
critical role players in the education and youth development 
sectors, published opinion pieces and inserts in national 
newspapers; and positioned itself as a thought leader at 
conferences and in forums. 

2019 was an important year to consolidate and pinpoint 
our strengths and focus. Indeed, it was the foundation for 
our ‘Launching Tomorrow’ strategy, and we look forward to 

MESSAGE FROM THE 

CHAIRMAN



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2019 7

partnering with you to realise South Africa’s 
potential. 

By partnering and collaborating with 
Tomorrow Trust, together we are sure to 
positively advance South Africa, even when 
everything else seems determined to reverse 
all the gains.  

Thank you and be blessed,

  Jack
Jack Phalane 
Chairman
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“OUR DAILY DEEDS AS ORDINARY SOUTH AFRICANS  

MUST PRODUCE AN ACTUAL SOUTH AFRICAN REALITY  

THAT WILL REINFORCE HUMANITY’S BELIEF IN JUSTICE,  

STRENGTHEN ITS CONFIDENCE IN THE NOBILITY  

OF THE HUMAN SOUL, AND SUSTAIN ALL OUR HOPES  

FOR A GLORIOUS LIFE FOR ALL.”  

 

– NELSON MANDELA
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OUR VISION IS FOR A

JUST TOMORROW

A society with conscious and holistically educated leaders; 
where all children, including the orphaned and vulnerable, have 
a real chance of success in academics and life.

AT TOMORROW TRUST WE PRIDE OURSELVES  
IN THE WAY WE WORK, LEADING BY EXAMPLE  
WITH OUR CORE VALUES OF

GROWTH, COMPASSION  
AND SOCIAL JUSTICE

OUR MISSION IS TO UNLOCK SOUTH AFRICA’S BEST 
TOMORROW THROUGH HOLISTIC EDUCATION TODAY:

FROM THE PLAYGROUND 
TO PROFESSIONAL

OUR

VISION

OUR

VALUES

OUR

MISSION



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 201910

A South African child’s Primary and Secondary education spans over 13 years, 
beginning at Grade R (Kindergarten) and ending at Grade 12. For 40 years, schools 
suffered from a poorly managed education structure, reinforced by an unequal 
Apartheid education that segregated races – and robbed many students of 
opportunities.

In 1994, apartheid was abolished – yet, South Africa still struggles to produce 
high performing schools. The South African education system is in crisis with the 
statistics being the worst that we have experienced in previous years.

The current pass rate in South Africa is 33.3% and a student may only repeat 
a grade once in any phase (Foundation, Intermediate, Senior and FET) of their 
schooling. Students are progressed to the next grade with a poor 
understanding of subject matter and little preparation for the next 
grade that they will attend.

The persistence of an inadequate education has long-lasting effects 
on South Africans and their communities. An alarming number 
of orphaned and vulnerable children are not coping at school or 
are underachieving academically. This is not only harmful to their 
already fragile self-esteem, but it is also a deterrent to gaining access 
to tertiary training facilities and opportunities that would enable 
them to find employment. The South African education system is 
continually evolving and this is very challenging to many educators 
who are unable to cope with the additional pressures. As a result of this,they are 
de-motivated and ill-equipped to academically enhance the lives of the learners 
they are teaching in school.

Many teachers are overwhelmed with the workload and often must teach 
subjects that they have not been trained in. As a result, the students are put in 
an unfair situation. English language skills are at an all-time low and this limits 
their participation in the world. South Africa also has the highest illiteracy and 
innumeracy rate in Africa.

EDUCATION
 IN SOUTH AFRICA

KNOWING THAT HOLISTIC EDUCATION 

IS AN ESSENTIAL INGREDIENT TO 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND 

POVERTY REDUCTION, TOMORROW 

TRUST IS COMMITTED TO ALTERING 

THE COURSE OF EDUCATION IN OUR 

COUNTRY.
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Poor education is the root of many social issues 
throughout the world. By supporting the Tomorrow 
Trust, you put faith in South African youth and create 
an opportunity for students, their families, and their 
communities to build fulfilling futures. 

Funding a South African youth promises them 
individualised schooling throughout their educational 
journey, which can bring them and their entire family 
out of poverty. Helping one student can truly help an 
entire community.

 OUR SUSTAINABLE

IMPACT

Education is the most sustainable option to provide professional 
opportunities and to improve socio-economic conditions. Once a 
Tomorrow Trust student graduates from university, they are fully 
prepared for a career in their field of study. Providing students 
with a fulfilling career strengthens their communities and their 
economy. Graduates go on to support their entire family, lifting 
them out of poverty.

All Tomorrow Trust alumni are encouraged to give back in their 
own capacity either financially or with their time to the younger 
Tomorrow Trust students and to their communities. They learn 
how their actions can improve their communities and bring about 
stronger South Africa. As communities become more educated, 
economies thrive, jobs increase and poverty rates decline.

 WHY

INVEST
 IN TOMORROW TRUST



The Tomorrow Trust supports orphaned and vulnerable 
children and youth to achieve their educational goals, from 
their earliest years until they are alumni.

Tomorrow Trust has a long-standing relationship with 
the South African Department of Social Development 
who provide us with funded NPO’s who assist us to select 
our children in the Junior and Senior Programme. Some 
of our children are also sourced from township schools 
feeding schemes. In our Tertiary Programme, students are 
selected from an application process and are considered 
based on financial status and career suitability highlighting 
perseverance and potential as key components.

 TOMORROW TRUST

STUDENTS

TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 201912
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 TOMORROW TRUST

GEOGRAPHICAL 
FOOTPRINT

LIMPOPO

GAUTENG

MPUMALANGA

KWAZULU-
NATAL

EASTERN CAPE

WESTERN CAPE

NORTHERN CAPE

FREE STATE

NORTH-WEST
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The Tomorrow Trust has various holistic educational programmes 
that provide academic, career and psycho-social support to 
orphaned and vulnerable children and youth, throughout their 
academic journey; from playground to profession. Below outlines 
the Tomorrow Trust programmes that enable the students to 
become self-reliant, independent individuals.

 WHAT WE

DO

Junior Holiday 
School Programme 

accommodating 
Grade R- 7

Tertiary Programme 
accommodating 

tertiary students in 
various fields

Senior Saturday 
and Holiday 

School Programme 
accommodating 

Grade 8-2

Alumni
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JUNIOR
 HOLIDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME  
 GRADE R (KINDERGARTEN) – GRADE 7

The Junior Holiday & Saturday School Programme (Grade 
R (K1)-7) focuses on developing the building blocks of 
Numeracy Skills and English Language development. 

The focus of the programme is on providing the children 
with holistic experiential workshops that plant the seeds 
for self growth and understanding. We believe that this will 
contribute to the social and emotional development of  
each child.

Another key component of the programme is that we 
provide nutritious meals, transport to and from the hosting 
venues as well as stationery and course materials. In this 
way, each learner is in the best possible position to take 
advantage of the learning opportunity provided by the 
Junior Holiday School Programme.
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FOUNDATION PHASE
GRADE R 

Focusing on Play Learning

As research shows, play is an important part of the 
classroom at this level because it helps develop the child 
in ways that other pedagogies and strategies cannot. Our 
Grade R learners do a lot of playing, drawing, colouring, 
cutting, painting, etc – these skills are crucial to ensure that 
learners are ready for Grade 1.

Children learn as they play. 

Most importantly, in play 

children learn how to learn.

– O. Fred Donaldson

OUTCOMES OF CHILDREN PLAYING

CONQUERS FEARS

SOCIAL DEXTERITY PROBLEM SOLVING

LEARNING TO SHARE CREATIVITY

RESOLVING CONFLICT IMAGINATION

EMOTIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT

COGNITIVE 
DEVELOPMENT

BUILDS CONFIDENCE
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FOUNDATION PHASE 
GRADE 1, 2 & 3

Developing Literacy, Numeracy and Emotional Regulation

Home language, First Additional Language (English) and Life 
Skills are taught in Foundation Phase. The breakdown below 
indicates time spent teaching the learners languages within 
their own schools:

Tomorrow Trust administer a pre and post baseline test to all 
participating learners within the programme. These tests are 
content and CAPS aligned and measures the understanding 
on basic concepts at each Grade. Below we have depicted 
the pre and post academic progress of the Grade 1-3 
learners in 2019.

SUBJECTS ACCORDING 
TO GDE POLICY

Grade R (K1) 
Hours Per 

week

Grade 1-3 
hours Per 

week

Home Language 10 Hours 8/7 Hours

First Additional Language 
(English)

0 Hours 2/3 Hours
72%

78%

61%

50%

41%

42%

76%

79%

63%

52%

60%

54%

Grade 1
Literacy 

Development

Grade 1
Numeracy 

Development

Grade 2
Literacy 

Development

Grade 2
Numeracy 

Development

Grade 3
Literacy 

Development

Grade 3
Numeracy 

Development

LITERACY PRE & POST BASELINE TEST RESULTS  
FOR GRADE R - 3

NUMERACY PRE& POST BASELINE TEST RESULTS  
FOR GRADE R - 3

Pre-Baseline Testing Post-Baseline Testing

Pre-Baseline Testing Post-Baseline Testing
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INTERMEDIATE PHASE 
GRADE 4-7

Strengthening English language and Mathematics skills

The Tomorrow Trust focuses on the transition from 
Foundation Phase to Intermediate Phase and understands 
that children need the foundations in English language and 
Numeracy in order to progress well. This is why the Junior 
Holiday and Saturday School programme places great 
emphasis on the development of the English language.

Below we share the pre and post baseline test results for 
the Grade 4-7 English Development in the Tomorrow Trust 
Junior Holiday and Saturday School Programme.

 
The most important goal during the Intermediate phase 
schooling years is for the learners to develop strong study 
habits, to continue to embrace learning, and to value 
education in general. By the end of Grade 4, learners have 
improved their language and writing skills in not only 
language and mathematics, but in other subjects as well.

Below we share the pre and post baseline test results for the 
Grade 4-7 Mathematics development in the Tomorrow Trust 
Junior Holiday and Saturday School Programme.

SA urgently needs to fix  

basic literacy and numeracy 

education in primary schools in 

order to prevent the drop-outs that 

occur at high-school level.

– Mary Metcalfe,  
Education policy authority

Business Day 12 March 2019

78% of Grade 4 learners  

in South Africa are illiterate  

and do not understand what  

they are reading.

–  International Reading  
Literacy Study – 2017

40%

40%

41%

59%

40%

48%

40%

54%

40%

41%

48%

63%

58%

54%

68%

64%

Grade 4
English

Grade 4
Mathematics

Grade 5
English

Grade 5
Mathematics

Grade 6
English

Grade 6
Mathematics

Grade 7
English

Grade 7
Mathematics

ENGLISH PRE & POST ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE  
FOR GRADE 4-7 – 2019

MATHEMATICS PRE & POST ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE  
FOR GRADE 4-7 – 2019

Pre-Baseline Testing Post-Baseline Testing

Pre-Baseline Testing
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#CHANGE A STORY
TSHEGOFATSO

Grade 1 Grade 3 Grade 5Grade 2 Grade 4 Grade 6 Grade 7

TSHEGOFATSO ENGLISH AND MATHEMATICS CONCEPT 
DEVELOPMENT OVER THE LAST 7 YEARS (2013-2019)

English Mathematics

49%

65%

72%
84%

75% 76% 80%

42%
46%

52% 56% 55%
59%
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TSHEGOFATSO is a young boy who resides in Tembisa. 
He has been in the Tomorrow Trust Junior Programme 
since 2012, Grade 1. With the support of the Tomorrow 
Trust, Tshegofatso has now completed his primary 
schooling with an average of 80%.

The Junior Holiday and Saturday School Programme 
provides crucial support for the development  
of these young children who have shown potential.  
The Junior Holiday School Programme is a 
comprehensive in-depth academic programme held 
during school holidays and specific allocated Saturdays 
during the year.

In 2020, Tshegofatso will be joining the Tomorrow 
Trust Senior Grade 8 Saturday and Holiday School 
Programme.

Alongside we have shown the 7-year growth chart for 
Tshegofatso’s participation in the Junior Holiday School 
Programme since Grade 1.

It is evident that he has made tremendous improvement 
from 42% in Mathematics in Grade 1 to 80% in Grade 7. 
His English has improved from 49% to 80% at the end of 
Grade 7.
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SENIOR 
 SATURDAY AND HOLIDAY SCHOOL  
 GRADE 8 – GRADE 12

Continuing the learner’s academic journey with Tomorrow 
Trust, Grade 7 learners graduate to the Senior Saturday 
and Holiday School Programme. This programme is a 
comprehensive academic career and psycho-social support 
programme focusing on building and strengthening English, 
Mathematics, Life Sciences and Physical Sciences. The goal 
is to enable these learners to pass their National Senior 
Certificate with improved results allowing them access to 
tertiary opportunities.

Again, this is a supplementary programme that is held on 
Saturdays and during the school holidays. We transport 
the learners from their community schools to our hosting 
schools and their academic endeavours are supported with 
nutritious meals, stationery and psycho-social support. 

A large component of this programme is the holistic 
workshops that we offer in order to develop the learners self. 
We do this, by providing various workshops on self-mastery, 
motivational talks and leadership development.

We also provide a Career Programme which prepares 
learners and students for the world of work, to enable them 
to transition from a learner to a student and to be an active 
member of society. 

Through career guidance and job readiness, the programme 
provides learners and students with the necessary tools to 
approach career choices, decisions and opportunities with a 
better understanding of career planning.
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GRADE 8 & 9 

Results released by TIMSS (Trends in International 
Mathematics and Science Study) at Grade 9 level indicate 
that the national average score for South Africa is 372 points 
for mathematics (38th out of 39 countries) and 358 points for 
science (last position).

It is evident that in Grade 9 learners are not equipped with 
the foundations of Mathematics and English to enable them 
to pass with a good mark.

Furthermore 47% of learners drop out of school at the 
end of Grade 9 in South Africa. The Holiday and Saturday 
School Programme’s intention is to have all Grade 9 learners’ 
progress to Grade 10 with good results, and for all of them 
to choose STEM subjects specifically Pure Mathematics as 
opposed to Mathematics Literacy moving forward.

The Holiday and Saturday School Programme has 100% 
retention of Grade 8 learners moving to Grade 9, whilst 
Grade 9 moving to Grade 10 retention is 81%.

The Tomorrow Trust has taken the main community 
schools that we work with and have averaged the group 
performance from the school and compared it to the 
Tomorrow Trust Final Grade 9 results. We aimed to ensure 
that learners are performing above 50% in English and 
Mathematics. If a learner is not able to achieve more than 
50% in those subjects, their foundation for Grade 10, 11 and 
12 will not be adequate resulting in them failing in Grade 12 
or dropping out.

81%
OF OUR LEARNERS IN 

GRADE 9 CHOOSE PURE 
MATHEMATICS GOING 

FORWARD TO GRADE 10

100%
THE HOLIDAY AND SATURDAY 

SCHOOL PROGRAMME HAS 
100% RETENTION OF GRADE 8 

LEARNERS MOVING TO GRADE 9
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GRADE 10, 11 AND 12

The Senior Saturday and Holiday School Programme has 
shown the quality and commitment to the academic 
outcome of learner’s results. Tomorrow Trust believes in 
accessing the potential in every child and ensuring they 
pass Grade 12 with improved marks despite the various 
challenges they face. This in turn develops a well-rounded 
competent individual who can positively contribute to 
the South African economy. Academics are one aspect of 
the Tomorrow Trust programs. In addition to this we focus 
on self-development, career guidance and psycho social 
support all of which supports academic excellence.

OVER THE LAST 10 YEARS:

664
LEARNERS ASSISTED TO 

COMPLETE THEIR NATIONAL 
SENIOR CERTIFICATE

77%
OF OUR 664 LEARNERS  

HAVE ACHIEVED A  
BACHELOR PASS RATE

15%
OF OUR 664 LEARNERS  

HAVE ACHIEVED A  
DIPLOMA PASS

98%
OVERALL PASS RATE  

FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS

3%
ACHIEVED A  

HIGHER CERTIFICATE
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We are proud to announce that the Tomorrow Trust Grade 12 class of 
2019 has achieved an overall 100% National Senior Pass compared 
to the South African National Pass Rate of 81.3%. The Tomorrow 
Trust nurtures the potential of disadvantaged learners and whilst 
passing acknowledge that it is important we strive towards quality 
not quantity.

Only 36% of South African learners achieved a bachelor university 
pass in 2019, whilst 79% of Tomorrow Trust Grade 12 learners 
achieved a bachelor university pass.

The Tomorrow Trust Grade 12 learners collectively achieved 74 
distinctions (80% and above). Our collective group average went 
from an average 57% to 62%.

CLASS OF 2019 
NATIONAL SENIOR CERTIFICATE ACHIEVEMENTS
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ACHIEVEMENTS HIGHLIGHTS OF CLASS 2019

• By the end of their final year at school in 2019, the 
performance of Grade 12 learners had improved to a 
group average of 60%, with English of 69%, and Maths  
of 54%.

• 100% of the group of Grade 12 achieved English at 
averages above 50% in their National Senior Certificate.

• 44% of the group of Grade 12 achieve Mathematics at 
averages above 50% in their National Senior Certificate.

• 78% of the group of Grade 12 achieved Life Science 
above 50% in their National Senior Certificate.

• 60% of the group of Grade 12 achieved Physical Science 
above 50% in their National Senior Certificate

Below we have highlighted some of our learner’s phenomenal results and their academic journey from when they joined 
Tomorrow Trust:

NAME & SURNAME

AVERAGE 
PERFORMANCE 
ON ENTERING 

TOMORROW TRUST

FINAL 
AVERAGE %  

IN 2019
DISTINCTIONS & COMMENTS

Lesego Moshe  
(Been with Tomorrow Trust since Grade 1)

77% 84%
5 Distinctions: English; Life Sciences; 
LO; Life Sciences; Physics

Thato Manyokole  
(Been with Tomorrow Trust since Grade 1)

65% 77% 2 Distinctions Life Sciences; Sesotho 

Siphokazi Moche  
(Been with Tomorrow Trust since Grade 1) 

71% 74% 2 Distinctions English; Life Sciences

Lehlogonolo Mashego 80% 84%
6 Distinctions: Maths; Life Sciences; 
Physics, Geography, LO; Geography 

Bafana Mhlahlo 59% 83% 3 Distinctions: Physics, Maths, English

Mohomutsi Makhalemele 76% 82%
4 Distinctions: Maths, Life Sciences, 
Physics, LO 

Lethabo Mojela 55% 82% 
4 Distinctions: Life Sciences, Physics, 
LO, Accounting

Pertunia Phefadu 48% 80%
3 Distinctions: Life Sciences; LO; 
Accounting 

Mikateko Mata 67% 79% 3 Distinctions: LO, Accounting, Physics

Simon Madibeng 23% 78%
5 Distinctions: LO, LS, Physics, 
Geography, Sesotho 

Mohayabo Masenya 78% 78% 
5 Distinctions: English; Life Sciences; 
Physics, LO, Geography

Luthando Ntabeni 77% 78%
5 Distinctions: Physics, Life Sciences, 
LO, Geography, IsiXhosa
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#CHANGE A STORY
 SATURDAY AND HOLIDAY SCHOOL 

SIPHOKAZI is from Tembisa and lives with her mother and 3 siblings. Siphokazi 
has been part of the Tomorrow Trust since Grade 1. She is a motivated young 
lady who has loved attending the programme. The programme has allowed her 
to feel supported during tough times. In 2015, she lost her biological father and 
her mother losing her job and her marks plummeted to 49%. Tomorrow Trust 
supported her through one-on-one support and workshops. She regained her 
self-esteem and confidence and opened up again. Her marks slowly improved 
from averages below 40% to achieving above 60%. She has completed her Grade 
12 and has been accepted to study BCom Accounting at Fort Hare University.

LESEGO is a 17 year old young man from Dube, Soweto. In majority of 
households in South Africa, many single parents raise their children most of the 
time, that being the mother. Lesego has never met his father. Lesego has been 
with the Tomorrow Trust since Grade 1. His confidence has grown over the year 
and Tomorrow Trust has provided him with the platform to develop not only 
his academics but his social emotional learning. Lesego passed his Grade 12 
Senior National Certificate with 4 distinctions in Home language, English, Life 
Orientation, Life Sciences and Physical Sciences. He has been accepted to WITS 
University to study Computer Sciences.

THATO resides in Moroka North, in Soweto. Thato has been part of the 
Saturday and Holiday School programme since Grade 1. Thato has a brother 
who completed his Grade 12 with Tomorrow Trust in 2018 and is now at Wits 
University. Thato has grown in confidence and really valued being in a space 
where he could learn and grow. Thato passed Grade 12 with a Bachelor Pass and 
achieved two Distinctions in Life Sciences and Home Language. Thato has been 
accepted to attend at Wits University to study Civil Engineering alongside his 
brother who is now in his second year studying Electrical Engineering. Tomorrow 
Trust has provided both boys with an opportunity to change their point of 
reference and provide them with an opportunity to study further.
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SNAP SHOT
 OF THE HOLIDAY AND SATURDAY SCHOOL PROGRAMME

TOMORROW TRUST HAS VARIOUS SUPPORT PROGRAMME THAT ASSIST US  
IN DEVELOPING THE FOLLOWING AREAS:

NUTRITIOUS MEALS WERE SERVED  
DURING 2019. THIS INCLUDED BREAKFAST, 

SNACK AND A COOKED LUNCH.

WERE HANDED OUT IN RECOGNISING  
THE BEST PERFORMANCE, MOST IMPROVED 

AS WELL AS 100% ATTENDANCE.

ARE USED FOR 
PRINTING OF 
NOTES EACH 

YEAR FOR 
SENIOR PHASE 

LEARNERS.

ARE USED AT THE 
HOLIDAY AND 

SATURDAY SCHOOL 
PROGRAMME ON AN 

ANNUAL BASIS ON 
EACH DAY FOR 52 DAYS.

ACHIEVED 
ABOVE 90% 

ATTENDANCE 
IN 2020.

IN THE OVERALL 
HOLIDAY AND 

SATURDAY SCHOOL 
PROGRAMME, AND 

IMPROVEMENT 
OF 4% FROM THE 
PREVIOUS YEAR.

OFFERED A COMPUTER 
MATHS PROGRAMME 

(SIYAVULA) MATHS 
PROGRAMME TO 105 
GRADE 10 LEARNERS.

LITTLE WINGS 
HOLISTIC 

PROGRAMME 
PROVIDED TO 710 
JUNIOR LEARNERS 

IN 2019

I AM CONVERSATIONS 
WERE PROVIDED TO 

270 GRADE 10, 11 AND 
GRADE 12 LEARNERS.

LAUNCHED A TUTORING 
PROGRAMME RUN BY OUR 
TERTIARY STUDENTS WHO 

PROVIDED ACADEMIC SUPPORT 
TO OUR SENIOR LEARNERS

FOR JUNIOR 
HOLIDAY SCHOOL 

PROGRAMME 
(GRADE R-7).

FOR SENIOR 
SATURDAY AND 

HOLIDAY SCHOOL 
PROGRAMME 
(GRADE 8-12).

HIGHLY ACCREDITED, 
QUALIFIED TEACHERS 

PARTICIPATE IN THE 
PROGRAMME.

116 454

65 AWARDS 271 600 
PAGES 

78

175

89% 87% 90%

88TAXIS

LEARNERS

ATTENDANCE  
RATE

ATTENDANCE  
RATE

ATTENDANCE  
RATE
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TERTIARY  
 PROGRAMME

Watching our learners complete their Grade 12 National 
Senior Certificate and graduate from school is an incredibly 
rewarding moment, particularly as they are now ready to 
enter into the Tertiary space. While our Tertiary programme 
offers partial and full bursaries to students completing 
various degrees at university, our goal is to create 
independent, problem-solving, conscious young adults, who 
will enter the workplace as self-reliant individuals ready to 
lead a successful life. 

Aligned with our organisations values of Compassion, 
Growth and Social Justice, we aim to reinforce our teachings 
through communication, accountability and self-awareness. 
This is achieved through on-going support with our in-
house Psychologists, monthly workshops, engagement 
sessions, career days and various activities that the students 
experience throughout their time at Tomorrow Trust.

At Tomorrow Trust, we aim to create a safe space and family 
environment, where our students can learn, fail and grow, 

without judgement, prejudice or fear. We believe that 
success is not linear, and walk our students path with them 
as they navigate the complexities of life as a university 
student and young adult. 

Being part of our Tertiary Programme, 
allows students to commit and invest 
in their own self-development and 
growth; helping them achieve 
their true full potential both 
academically and personally.
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WHAT MAKES OUR TERTIARY PROGRAMME UNIQUE?

We spot potential in worthy South African youth who 
deserve an opportunity to unlock their full potential through 
Tertiary education.

• Our aim is to create well-rounded, independent and self-
sustainable leaders of tomorrow through an integrated 
academic, career and psycho-social programme.

• Individually tailored support for our students provided by 
our in-house Psychologists – we do not have a ‘one shoe 
fits all’ policy.

• Successfully manage and facilitate their transitions 
through the higher education space.

• Work readiness programmes preparing students for the 
next chapter in their professional career.

When the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary department was founded 
in 2005, 12 students were supported to obtain their tertiary 
qualifications.

In 2019, 92 students were supported by the Tomorrow 
Trust studying at various institutions (E.g. University of the 
Witwatersrand, University of Cape Town and Maharishi 
Institute) and in various career fields (E.g. Commerce, 
Engineering, Law and Computer Science).

OF OUR 

STUDENTS 

ATTEND 

TRADITIONAL 

UNIVERSITIES.

OF OUR  

STUDENTS 

PURSUED 

STEM ALIGNED 

QUALIFICATIONS.

OF OUR 

STUDENTS 

PURSUED A 

HEALTH SCIENCE 

QUALIFICATION.

OF OUR 

STUDENTS 

PURSUED 

HONORS 

QUALIFICATIONS.

86%

44%

21%

12%
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2019 TERTIARY PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

At Tomorrow Trust, we pride ourselves on implementing an 
integrated but individually tailored support programme for 
all our students. We understand that in order for students to 
fully unlock their true potential and successfully transition 
through university, our focus cannot only be an academic 
one. Instead, we provide our students with a safe space and 
a community they can belong to, allowing them to explore, 
thrive and grow. 

Our three areas of intervention as shown below, are 
therefore interlinked, as we believe that true potential 
cannot be unlocked if one of these areas are missing.
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A. ACADEMIC ANALYSIS

The analysis of the 2019 tertiary students’ academics illustrates not only an 
improvement in performance, but also the overall benefits of holistic support to these 
students, which ensures success in all areas. The table below highlights our students’ 
2019 performance in comparison to previous years:

YEAR
NO. OF 

BENEFICIARIES 
SUPPORTED

PASS RATE
THROUGHPUT 

RATE
DROPOUT 

RATE
DROPOFF 

RATE

2016 140 91% 86% 5% 9%

2017 115 91.5% 94% 2.5% 3.5%

2018 99 92% 96% 3% 1%

2019 92 98% 71% 1.5% 1.5%

Pass Rate is defined as the number of students who completed 
the academic year and progressed to their next year of study. 
In other words they do not need to repeat the academic year.

• Throughput rate is defined as the percentage of students 
who passed their qualification in the minimum time 
required (N).

• Dropout Rate refers to the beneficiaries who left the Tertiary 
Programme in 2019 and did not continue pursuing their 

studies. This was either due to academic exclusion from 
the institution, or by Tomorrow Trust.

• Dropoff Rate refers to the beneficiaries who are no 
longer being supported by the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary 
Programme, but are still studying at their respective 
institutions. 

 This was either due to donors ceasing funding, a change 
of institution/course by the student or dismissal by the 
Tomorrow Trust due to poor academic performance.

PASS RATE

THROUGHPUT RATE

DROPOUT RATE

DROP OFF RATE

91%

86%

5%

9%

2016

2016

2016

2016

98%

71%

1.5%

1.5%

2019

2019

2019

2019
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B. CAREER ANALYSIS

One of our biggest goals at Tomorrow Trust is to prepare 
our students with the transition from being a student to 
a professional. Our work readiness and career guidance 
interventions play an integral part in ensuring our students 
not only secure employment upon graduation but also 
are equipped with the skills required to succeed in the 
workplace. Below is a table outlining the percentage of 
students who found employment at various times following 
their graduation as well as the total number of candidates 
currently employed from each graduate cohort.

YEAR
NO. OF 

GRADUATES
BEFORE 

GRADUATING
WITHIN 6 
MONTHS

AFTER 6 
MONTHS

STUDYING 
FURTHER

UNEMPLOYED
TOTAL 

EMPLOYED

2016 30 56.6% 13.4% 13.4% - 16.6% 83.4%

2017 36 53% 8.3% 13.8% 8.3% 16.6% 83.4% 

2018 24 71% 16.6% - 8.3% 4.1% 95.9%

2019 34 50% 3.5% - 17.5% 29% 71%*

*Statistics as at February 2020
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C. PSYCHO-SOCIAL ANALYSIS

At Tomorrow Trust, we understand that the life stage of 
young adults can be a very tumultuous time and that this 
can bring up a number of psychological challenges which 
may not have been acknowledged and resolved. Without 
the correct support, these deep-seated challenges can 
impact negatively on students’ academic success and overall 
well-being. The strength of the psycho-social component 
of our intervention lies in the fact that we offer this support 
ourselves in-house, and utilise the skills and expertise 
of Psychologists to do so. This allows us to hold close 
relationships with our students and provide the correct 
type of support to each individual which we believe is an 
important part of student success.

When students join the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme, 
each student is individually assessed and classified 
according to their risk status and the level of psychological 
support required. This allows us to tailor our interventions 
for the student’s requirements. The table below illustrates 
the % of students identified as:

a.  High risk of failing each year

b.  Low risk of failing, however requiring substantial, 
in-depth support to promote optimal functioning.

As per the table below, our annual Pass and Throughput 
rates are reflective of the idea that while psychological 
support is extremely important it is not a fool proof method. 
While our interventions often prevent students from failing 
completely and result in increased academic performance, 
we do still often see students fail a module, needing to 
repeat modules and an increase in duration of studies. 
At Tomorrow Trust we understand that failure is part of 
the process and we do not use this as a reason to dismiss 
students, but rather as a tool to overcome challenges and 
approach life with a growth mind-set.

An important aspect of the psycho-social component, are 
our holistic workshops. These are run on a monthly basis and 
are focused on equipping students with the skills required 
to build insight, self-awareness and engage in interpersonal 
relationships with maturity and compassion. Through these 
workshops, we hope to empower our students to approach 
life with new perspective and self-confidence as one key 
aspect of unlocking their potential.

YEAR
NO. OF BENEFICIARIES 

SUPPORTED
HIGH RISK OF FAILING HIGH LEVEL OF SUPPORT

PASS RATE OF  
HIGH RISK STUDENTS

2017 115 11% 24% 96.5%

2018 99 7% 34% 95% 

2019 92 10% 16% 88%

TOMORROW TRUST GIVES BACK
As part of their personal and holistic development, the 
tertiary students at Tomorrow Trust are required to “give 
back” 10 hours either at Saturday School or during the 
Holiday School programme. Through this, they are allowed 
to assist learners with their scholastic work, run specific 

activities or with mentoring and support. Students also 
gain valuable life skills which will contribute to their overall 
development. In 2019, the tertiary students volunteered a 
total of 1683 hours, with 82% of students volunteering 10 
hours or more during this time.
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SNAP SHOT
 OF 2019 TERTIARY PROGRAMME

17
GOLDEN KEY 

STUDENTS

GRADUATES

1683

82%

VOLUNTEERING 
HOURS  

COMPLETED

VOLUNTEERED MORE 
THAN 10 HOURS  

IN THE YEAR

HOLISTIC WORKSHOPS 
RUN

20

3418
AWARDS  

GIVEN AT OUR 
END OF YEAR 

FUNCTION
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#CHANGE A STORY
TERTIARY

TUMELO THLABANYANE is a true indicator of the Tomorrow Trust model 
having joined the Holiday and Saturday School Programme in primary school, 
then progressing into high school before joining the Tertiary Programme. 
Through hard work, dedication and focus not only did he complete his Matric 
with wonderful results coming in the Top 3 of his high school, but in 2019 he 
successfully completed his first year of university. Tumelo is currently pursuing 
a Bachelor in Diagnostic Radiography at the University of Johannesburg and is 
thriving at the opportunity to pursue a career he is passionate about, whilst also 
focusing on his personal and professional growth in preparation for the next 
stage of his life in the workspace. 

As an all-rounder, JABULANI SIBANDE is someone who really exemplifies 
tenacity and perseverance. Coming from Mpumalanga, Jabulani joined the 
Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme during his 2nd year of studies while he was 
pursuing a BA Law degree at the University of the Witwatersrand. With no funding 
or support available to him, Jabulani grabbed the Tomorrow Trust opportunity 
with both hands utilising our support programmes to begin his process of self-
development. Through this, Jabulani realised that Law was not his true calling 
and changed to a BA General degree with a focus on Politics and International 
Relations. At the end of 2019 he became the first member of his family to 
graduate with a degree from university and is now pursuing Honours in African 
Studies at the University of Johannesburg. 

NTHABISENG HLAPISI’s university journey has not been an easy one. 
Uncertainty in terms of her career path, changing degrees, a lack of funding and 
support, all made the situation seem hopeless for Nthabiseng when she joined 
the Tomorrow Trust. However, Nthabiseng never lost her sparkle, and with the 
continued support of the Tertiary Team empowering her to achieve her full 
potential, she has successfully completed her BCom Economics at the University 
of the Witwatersrand and is now very proud to be pursuing an Honours in the 
same field.
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ALUMNI  
 PROGRAMME

The Alumni Programme is made up of former beneficiaries 
that come through the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme, 
who completed a qualification with the Tomorrow Trust and 
those who are now employed. 

The goal of this programme is to create a lifelong 
community of alumni through increased opportunities with 
meaningful engagements. Tomorrow Trust students never 
truly leave the Tomorrow Trust programme, because we 
become family through the close bonds developed in our 
learning environments.

What’s more, their opportunities to engage with Tomorrow 
Trust never end. Once they graduate, students are accepted 
into the alumni programme that offers a platform for 
graduates to participate in the future of the organisation 
and to network amongst themselves. 

This programme serves a dual purpose. 

Firstly, alumni are encouraged to give back to fellow 
students in younger grades and contribute to the well-being 
of children in similar circumstances. 
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Secondly, our Alumni Programme encourages peer support 
and networking by like-minded young people who are able 
to share their stories of success.

This final piece of the puzzle encourages our graduates to 
be engaged, civic-minded individuals who never stop giving 
back to their communities.

Alumni attend organised gatherings aimed at addressing 
their needs whilst offering further career, psycho-social and 
holistic support.

Having completed their qualification, many graduates take 
internships with major companies; that often lead to fulltime 
employment, while others secure full-time employment, 
and or decide to further their studies. Our graduates work 
in various companies such as PWC, Nedbank, IQ Business, 
Ernest & Young, Leratong Hospital, Komatsu, Murray & 
Roberts, Burgess plumbing and more. 

Some are in media, fashion, research, pharmacology, 
logistics, while a few work outside South Africa in countries 
such as China, Italy and Saudi Arabia. It is incredible to 
have our graduates pursue business ventures, and those 
that have taken this route are making great waves in South 
Africa. To be chosen as one of the most influential young 
entrepreneurs in South Africa is quite an achievement.

We take pride in our alumni and want to relish in their 
accomplishments. Through hard work, perseverance, and 
determination, graduates have positively changed and 
continue to change their lives and those of their families. 
Their success is a reflection of our pursuit to change stories 
with a holistic education.

SOME OF OUR MANY QUALIFICATIONS 
AMONGST OUR ALUMNI

IN 14 YEARS OF TOMORROW TRUST’S  
EXISTENCE, WE HAVE

316 
ALUMNI MEMBERS

 
 
GRADUATES 
COMPLETED  
THEIR STUDIES  
END OF 2019. 34

EDUCATORS

WITH MASTERS 
DEGREES 

IN LAW

MEDICAL  
DOCTORS

CURRENTLY 
COMPLETING 
THEIR PHD

15

12

8

5

2
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316 80% 4% 
ARE EMPLOYED ARE STUDYING FURTHER

TOMORROW TRUST 2011 BCOM ACCOUNTING 
GRADUATE, THEO BALOYI NOW CEO AND 
FOUNDER

Theo is a qualified Accountant by qualification who ventured 
into starting his own business in 2015. His passion for 
reigniting hope to many families by playing his part by 
reducing the increasing unemployment rate inspired him to 
pursue a career in entrepreneurship. He is now the CEO and 
Founder of Bathu Shoes, a proudly South African sneaker 
brand. His business employs over 82 employees of which 
80% are from Alexandra, the community he was brought up 
in. Theo’s vision is to create a proudly South African sneaker 
brand which all residing in Africa and abroad can resonate 
with. Theo currently has 10 stores that are fully operational 
for trade.

Theo has received many awards over the last 5 years and 
some of his recent accolades include, 2019- 100 Most 
Influential Young South Africa, Fast Growth Black-Owned 
SMME (finalist), and Top Empowered Young Achiever of the 
Year for 2020.

TOMORROW TRUST 2011 BACHELOR OF LAW 
GRADUATE,LEROY NTANZI, NOW MEDIA AND 
RADIO PERSONALITY

After studying and working for a few years, Leroy realized 
that his passion lies in the dramatic arts. He found his voice 
at Joburg Ballet at the Civic Theatre in Johannesburg, starring 
in a production called Giselle. That is when the bug bit and 
started pursuing a career in media and arts earnestly. 

For three years, he worked at TransAfrica Radio, hosting the 
Saturday evening talk show called the “Man Talk with Leroy 
Marc”. He was also approached by BET AFRICA (BET in Africa 
– part of the diverse multimedia entertainment) to be one of 
the presenters for an entertainment flagship show called BET 
A-List. This was the beginning of huge moves for him in the 
entertainment industry. He was able to do the RED Carpet at 
the MTV Africa Music Awards, alongside international artists 
such as Future. He has travelled around Africa and within 
South Africa, subsequently, become one of the hosts for the 
DSTV Mazansi Viewer’s Choice Awards in 2018.

Leroy’s motto is “Ease is a greater risk to progress than 
hardship, fall down 7 times get up 8 times” 
– Denzel Washington 

TOTAL ALUMNI 



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 201944

#CHANGE A STORY
 SATURDAY AND HOLIDAY SCHOOL 

ANDILE MSIMANG comes from Durban in the KwaZulu Natal 
Province. He completed Grade 12 in 2013 and joined Tomorrow 
Trust Tertiary Programme as a beneficiary in 2016, in his final year 
of studies. Andile has always been dedicated to his academics and 
career and was driven to work hard. He enrolled to study at the 
University of Johannesburg upon completing Grade 12 to peruse 
a degree in human resources. At the end of 2016, he graduated 
with BCom Human Resources Management from the University 
of Johannesburg. Andile is currently employed at IQ Business, an 
independent management consulting firm as a Senior Associate; the 
same firm he was accepted for a Graduates Programme at the start 
of 2018. 

His motto in life – “Nala kungekho qgude liyasa” (even when the 
rooster is not present, day dawns)
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LETHABO SEBOTHOMA comes from Thembisa, East of 
Johannesburg in the Gauteng Province. In 2012, she joined the 
Tomorrow Trust’s Holiday and Saturday School Programme when 
she was in Grade 10. She completed Grade 12 in 2014 and joined 
the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme in 2015. Lethabo has 
always persevered and was determined to reach her academic 
goals. She enrolled at the University of the Witwatersrand soon 
after completing Grade 12 and obtained BSc Biology and Chemistry 
in 2018. End of 2019, Lethabo graduated with her 2nd degree, 
BSc Honours Animal, Plant and Environmental Sciences from the 
same university. She currently holds a presidential position in the 
Dyondzo Mahlweni organisation, which helps disadvantaged high 
school learners with higher education applications and support 
to get them through their high school years. Lethabo registered 
to pursue MSc in Animal Plants and Environmental Sciences at the 
University of the Witwatersrand, focusing on Medicinal Plants for 
the 2020 academic year. 

She learned – “Life has taught me that it is possible to be what you 
want to be in life, and the crowd you surround yourself with plays a 
major role in your life decisions. It has taught me that for every fall, 
whether small or big, there is a rise and it is always spectacular at 
the end of the tunnel.”
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In efforts to extend our reach to impact 
more learners in South Africa, Tomorrow 
Trust has invested time and resources 
to grow the programmes in the Western 
Cape. A big part of the Tomorrow Trust 
model is holistic development. 

Holistic development is hugely 
important specifically for the learners 
coming from the Western Cape 
communities. With the alarming 
statistics, showing high risks in alcohol, 
drug abuse, and gangsterism, it proves 
that when children are exposed to a 
positive environment and a “caring 
adult”– the likelihood of them turning 
to these social ills are decreased. The 
Tomorrow Trust has 60 junior learners 
and 13 tertiary students participating in 
our programming. 

JUNIOR PROGRAMME

The Tomorrow Trust offers 
supplementary support during the 
holiday period as well as on Saturdays 
to children in order to build, support 
and supplement the teaching they 
receive at their home schools. Future 
success in education and in life depends 
on a strong academic foundation, 
with numeracy and literacy being 
given particular attention within the 
junior phase. The Junior Holiday & 

 TOMORROW TRUST IN THE 

WESTERN CAPE

Saturday School Programme (Grade 
R (K1)-7) focuses on developing the 
building blocks of Numeracy Skills and 
English Language development. This 
is not only about providing academic 
support but providing them with 
holistic experiential workshops that 
plant the seed for self-growth and 
understanding. This will contribute to 
the social and emotional development 
of each child.

Another key component of the 
programme is that we provide 
nutritious meals, transport to and 
from the hosting venues as well as 
stationery and course materials. In 
this way, each learner is in the best 
possible position to take advantage of 
the learning opportunity provided by 
the Junior Holiday School Programme. 
The Tomorrow Trust has increased their 
foot print in the Western Cape assisting 

60 junior learners from Gugulethu 
and Nanga in 2019. These learners 
are in Grade R, 1, 6 and 7. The cohort 
of Grade 6 and 7 learners have been 
with Tomorrow Trust since Grade R/1. 
We have successfully retained 80% of 
those learners within the programme 
and they continue their academic 
and psychosocial development with 
Tomorrow Trust.

TERTIARY PROGRAMME

While the Tertiary Programme has had a 
very small foothold in the Western Cape 
over the past few years, 2019 brought 
with it significant growth in this area. 
Specifically, while we have grown the 
number of beneficiaries we support, 
we have also focused on implementing 
more focused interventions and 
programmes, while also establishing 
and growing partnerships at 
an institutional, corporate and 
organisational level. 

Having seen the need for support 
in the Western Cape, we hope to 
continue expanding our reach, making 
a sustainable impact. The table below 
illustrates the growth and progression 
of our Tertiary Programme in the 
Western Cape over the past three years.

2017 2018 2019

6 Students 7 Students 13 Students

Degrees in Commerce, Health 
Sciences and Law

Degrees in Science, Commerce, 
Medicine

Degrees in Science, Commerce, 
Medicine, Law, Computer Science

Telephonic support only
Some monthly sessions 

3 holistic workshops
Face to face sessions every month 

6 Holistic workshops

Budget of Approx. R500 000 Budget of Approx. R550 000 Budget of Approx. R1.3 million

10 hours given back by the 
students to HSP

50 hours given back by the 
students to HSP

180.5 hours given back by the 
students to HSP
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SHIFT  
 PROGRAMME

As the 4th Industrial revolution progresses, inequality in society will 
increase as job requirements change and the return to education 
accelerates. Equipping learners with 20th-century skills will not 
empower them for the 21st Century workplace. Tomorrow Trust does 
more than help learners catch up through supplementary education; 
it contributes to opportunities for learning experiences for all to 
leapfrog out-dated pedagogies and technologies.

By focusing our efforts on developing the human skills of empathy, 
problem-solving, creativity, collaboration and grit, marginalised 
youth can leverage their own life experiences to outperform 
wealthier children in these areas central to life success. Young  
people will only be able to create a better future for themselves if 
they have the adult support, self-believe, technical capabilities and 
digital access they need to take advantage of the opportunities 
around them.

This initiative is called SHIFT: (Digital) Skills, Holism and Innovation 
for Tomorrow). SHIFT includes coding, gaming, robotics and 
integrated classroom teaching onto a digital platform for our senior 
learners.

SHIFT makes use of digitalisation in our Holiday and Saturday School 
Programmes to improve access to an education appropriate for the 
4th Industrial Revolution. 

62

60

40

50%

90%

90%

85%

GRADE 8 ENROLLED IN THE SHIFT 
PROGRAMME IN THE YEAR 2019 

GRADE 8 LEARNERS WERE PART OF THE 
CODING AND ROBOTICS PROGRAMME 

THROUGHOUT THE YEAR
 

 LEARNERS PARTICIPATED IN LEGO 
LEAGUE COMPETITION IN 2019

AND ABOVE IS OUR TARGET FOR 
ACADEMIC RESULTS FOR ALL SUBJECTS 

– GRADE 8 RECEIVED A GROUP 
AVERAGE OF 55% IN TERM 4

ATTENDANCE RATE  
BY THE END OF 2019

OF OUR LEARNERS HAVE ACHIEVED 
ABOVE 80% IN THEIR DIGITAL 

LITERACY ASSIGNMENTS

CLASS AVERAGE COMPETENCY IN 
THE DIGITAL CLASSROOM
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The Tomorrow Trust has addressed the educational and 
psycho-social gaps in youth coming from orphaned and 
vulnerable households across the developmental spectrum, 
from Grade R to Tertiary education. 

Tomorrow Trust builds a culture that reflects our values of 
Growth, Compassion and Social Justice. We have created a 
Tomorrow Trust way of working that sees learners as more 
than orphaned and vulnerable young people, and more 
than future employees or workers. We create space for them 
to discover and reach their potential.

The “I Am Little Wings” Psycho-Social Support Programme 
aims to target the core developmental milestones and life 
skills within each phase of education, and thus support the 
child and youth’s ability to transition across life’s challenges. 
This model is informed by Erik Erikson’s eight stages of 
psychosocial development across an individual’s lifespan.

As the individual grows and develops, they are faced 
with natural circumstances that address issues of trust, 
authenticity, initiative, competence, identity, and 
interpersonal relationships with the goal of and making 
meaning of one’s life experiences. 

Psycho-social life skills are an important component of 
mastering these developmental challenges.

“I AM LITTLE WINGS”  
 PROGRAMME

The one Topic we had is that ‘you  

can be anything you want to be in this world.’  

This touched me a lot because I know that it is 

the reason I wake up and go to school. We also 

spoke about ‘your family background cannot 

be a barrier which stops you to your dreams’. 

We spoke about me a being a change maker. 

We were asked to express ourselves on paper  

and that build a foundation for me.

– Mumsy, Grade 10 learner.

Tomorrow Trust is not just a place  

of learning, but a place of hope, love, care and 

joy at the same time. The Tomorrow Trust 

teaches us how to use the power of our mind,  

to be responsible, and respective around  

everyone we meet.

– Kgotso Grade 12 learner

FORMAL  
“I AM LITTLE  

WINGS” 
SESSIONS HOSTED  

IN 2019

LEARNERS PARTICIPATED IN 
WORKSHOPS FOCUSED ON 

VALUES, AFFIRMATIONS AND 
INTENTION, SELF-CARE AND 

GRATITUDE WORKSHOPS

17
105
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As part of the holistic support for our learners and students, 
the Stepping Stones Career Programme aims to explore the 
various elements which go into identifying and selecting 
one’s career path. 

For our high school learners, the programme guides them 
to understand themselves as individuals (personality 
characteristics, interests and values) and explores this along 
with a wide range of career options, both traditional and 
non-traditional.

Learners are also provided with mentorship opportunities, 
which feed into the holistic development aspect of overall 
growth and development, including their own individual 
future plans. Grade 11 and 12 learners undergo a formal 
career assessment, and are guided in understanding the 
outcome and what this means for their Tertiary options. 

For our Tertiary students, guidance and support is provided 
through informal career talks with people in their select 
industries, workshops for work-readiness as well as career 
counselling.

STEPPING STONES   
 CAREER PROGRAMME 
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TOMORROW TRUST’S HOLISTIC EDUCATION IS AN EVIDENCE-BASED 

APPROACH  THAT HELPS LEARNERS AND STUDENTS FIND THEIR IDENTITY, 

MEANING AND PURPOSE IN LIFE TO RADICALLY INCREASE THEIR 

LIKELIHOOD OF ACADEMIC AND LIFE SUCCESS. BY SEEING LEARNERS AND 

STUDENTS AS MORE THAN ORPHANS OR VULNERABLE YOUNG PEOPLE, 

AND MORE THAN FUTURE EMPLOYEES OR WORKERS, WE CREATE SPACE FOR 

THEM TO DISCOVER AND REACH THEIR POTENTIAL. WE BELIEVE ACADEMIC 

PERSISTENCE AND GRIT CAN BE DEVELOPED BY HELPING YOUNG PEOPLE 

FEEL LIKE THEY BELONG AND BY GIVING THEM OPPORTUNITIES TO TAKE 

RISKS, TO EXPERIENCE FAILURE AND SUCCESS. WE BELIEVE THAT PERSONAL 

GROWTH EMERGES FROM A COMBINATION OF PRESSURE AND SUPPORT 

AND THESE FORM THE FOUNDATION FOR SKILL AND EXPERTISE. 
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LEVIS STRAUSS COMMUNITY DAY
 
Tomorrow Trust has a long-standing relationship with Levi 
Strauss and has worked closely with the team to create 
meaningful volunteering opportunities for the staff in 
Gauteng and the Western Cape. 

On 15 May 2019, Levis Strauss partnered with Tomorrow 
Trust to celebrate their giving back Community Day whereby 
80 volunteers where linked to 80 of Tomorrow Trust learners 
for a fun-filled day, in Gugulethu Western Cape. Levis Strauss 
is known for their commitment to saving the planet and 
water awareness and so aligned with this, Tomorrow Trust 
planned a special day for Levis Strauss volunteers and 
Tomorrow Trust learners by focusing on Levis Strauss core 
awareness pillars. 

We taught the learners about the beautiful planet, and how 
to become heroes within our communities and providing 

tips and tools on how to face their fears.  Tomorrow Trust was 
honoured to receive $6000 gift from Levi’s Strauss Foundation. 
This gift went to supporting unsponsored learners from Mseki 
Primary School participating at our Junior Holiday School 
Programme. 

DONOR    
INVOLVEMENT

GIVING IS NOT JUST ABOUT THE DONATION, IT’S ABOUT MAKING A DIFFERENCE! 
TOMORROW TRUST WOULD LIKE TO THANK EACH OF OUR DONORS WHO CONTRIBUTED 

TO THE TOMORROW TRUST LEARNERS DURING 2019. 

LEVIS STRAUSS BOYZ CAMP

Working closely with Tomorrow Trust, Levis Strauss Gauteng 
Team was inspired to support Tomorrow Trust Grade 8 and 9 
learners by hosting a Boyz Camp. As there is a strong focus in 
South Africa on developing young girls, Levis Strauss wanted to 
move away from the contrary beliefs and focus their attention 
on building the boy child. The boy child often falls through 
the cracks and contributes to the ills in society. For this reason 
Levis Strauss dedicated their time to invest in young men. This 
3-day camp focused on developing boys into young men and 
tackled tough themes such as gender-based violence, being 
positive role models and attitude and values that are the core 
of developing young men. These boys were then asked to 
be ambassadors and are looking forward to enriching their 
communities and the younger generation to come. 
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BDO ART JAMMING

BDO is a group of accounting firms operating throughout 
Southern Africa offering accounting, auditing, secretarial, 
tax, financial services and risk management. Tomorrow Trust 
partnered with BDO Western Cape to treat our Western Cape 
Grade 6 and 7 learners to a day out of their communities.  
Excursions are a vital aspect of our programme and 
provide the learner with another dimension to class-based 
learning, enhancing social skills and exposing the learners 
to new experiences that they have never had before. These 
excursions also contribute to the psychology of our learners, 
as they become more confident developing a positive self-
esteem and sense of self. 

T7C CONSULTING 

Tomorrow Trust is proud to have alumni working in various 
businesses across South Africa. We were thrilled to have 
one of our Alumni, Precious Makgareetsa who rallied her 
company to give back to Tomorrow Trust. T7C Consulting, 
a proudly South African company that provides various IT 
solutions donated 10 refurbished laptops to the Tomorrow 
Trust. These laptops all supported our SHIFT (Digital 
Skills, Holism and Innovation for Tomorrow) Programme 
which provides orphaned and vulnerable learners the 
opportunity to code, build robotics and gain knowledge on 
digital literacy that will prepare them for the 4th Industrial 
Revolution.

MIMECAST F25 VISIT

Tomorrow Trust had the pleasure of welcoming Mimecast 
F25 Executive members to an interactive day at one of our 
community schools, Mseki Primary School, in Gugulethu, 
Western Cape. This experience was to treat these executives 
from all around the world to the diversity and richness of our 
communities as well as show them how dynamic our South 
African children are. 

Tomorrow Trust presented to them how we support the 
school and children by providing holistic supplementary 
support to these children during the holiday period. This 
prevents them from falling to social ills and gets them 
motivated to complete their schooling. The F25 Executives 
went on a tour of the school and had the opportunity to 
work one-on-one with 80 learners in Grade R, creating 
artwork and sharing experiences.
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ZENSAR TECHNOLOGIES PARTNERS WITH 
TOMORROW TRUST TO SUPPORT ITS SHIFT 
PROGRAMME 

Zensar Technologies, a leading digital solutions and 
technology services company that specialises in partnering 
with organizations across industries on their digital 
transformation journey, strengthened their collaborative 
efforts along with Tomorrow trust in education/skills 
development domain and supporting Tomorrow Trust in its 
SHIFT (Digital Skills, Holism and Innovation for Tomorrow) 
programme.  At a well-attended event in June 2019, Zensar 
donated laptops to this programme to invest in the growth 
of ICT (Information and Communication Technology) in the 
region. This initiative is a part of the long-standing efforts 
of both Zensar and Tomorrow Trust to enable students 
to develop into employable individuals by learning new 
skills, receive practical knowledge on current trends in the 
industry and understand career opportunities. The laptops 
will be used to impart digital literacy to students who are 
interested in pursuing a career in this field.

Sandeep Kishore, Chief Executive Officer and Managing 
Director, Zensar said, “It gives me immense pleasure to see 
our South African team working with bright, young minds 
to help them achieve their life’s dreams. As a company, we 
are a living digital entity and to enable these students to be 
digitally literate professionals, will propel them to contribute 
gainfully to the future of this great country.”

TAKE A GIRL CHILD TO WORK DAY

Take a Girl Child to Work Day was launched in 2003 as Cell 
C’s flagship CSI project. It has grown to become one of 
the nation’s most powerful social movement’s. Inspired 
by this campaign, Tomorrow Trust has since taken part 
and has been able to afford learners in our programme 
the opportunity to experience the corporate world and 
skills needed in different fields. We would like to thank our 
partners who participated with us in Take A Child to Work 
Day 2019.

• PepsiCo South Africa,  
• Makro, 
• Merck, 
• Zensar Technologies
• Murray & Roberts, 
• Wood, and 
• SAGE
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SAGE FOUNDATION & SHIFT 

SHIFT (Digital Skills, Holism and Innovation for Tomorrow) is 
a new innovative programme focused on coding, robotics 
and digital literacy for the Grade 8 and 9 Tomorrow Trust 
learners. We partner with Sage to provide their team in 
office volunteering opportunities. The Sage Volunteers 
worked closely with the Tomorrow Trust learners showing 
them different digital skills and share their life experience 
with the learners. By taking the learners to the Sage offices, 
it broadens the learner’s perspective and exposes them to 
more careers in that industry.

EUROMONITOR INTERNATIONAL VOLUNTEERS 
MENTORS LEARNERS IN DIGITAL SKILLS

The Tomorrow Trust programme called SHIFT (digital Skills, 
Holism and Innovation for Tomorrow) has leveraged off 
various companies leading role in digital transformation 
and its experiences in the working world. Tomorrow Trust 
welcomed 40 Euromonitor International to our Western 
Cape Holiday School Programme. Each volunteer was 
assigned to a Grade 6 and 7 learners to take them through 
a digital mentorship workshop. This workshop taught the 
learners how to navigate a laptop, how to use a key board 
and how to use different applications such as excel and 
word. 

  
MANDELA DAY

Mandela Day is a global call to action that celebrates the 
idea that each individual has the power to transform the 
world, and the ability to make an impact. In 2019, Tomorrow 
Trust focused on Madiba’s love for education and building 
strong reading skills for our children.  

We spent 67 minutes sharing the Freeing Freddie – The 
Dream Weaver with our children and turning them into 
superheroes. We shared what they wanted to be when 
they grew up and inspired them that any dream is possible. 
“Education is the most powerful weapon you can use to 
change the world” – Nelson Mandela

We would like to thank CSS for sharing the day with 30 of 
their sponsored learners from Tembisa as well as Monocle 
Solution who shared this beautiful story with 80 learners 
from Alexandra.
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PARTNER BREAKFAST – LAUNCHING TOMORROW

Tomorrow Trust hosted a first of its kind event to celebrate 
and share its new improved strategy with all its partners 
and stakeholders. The Tomorrow Trust team worked hard 
to unpack a new and improved direction for the Tomorrow 
Trust. 

We relooked at our core values and agreed that they are 
not just words; they guide the behaviours we expect to see 
every day inside the office and out, those that we role model 
and teach and that we believe are essential to personal 
success and a thriving society. 

OUR NEW VALUES ARE: 

1. Growth - We stretch ourselves, our beneficiaries and 
each other, every day. We believe that intelligence and 
leadership capacity can be developed further in everyone; 
we only require the combined presence of pressure and 
support.

2. Compassion- We make each person in this community 
feel like they belong and are safe here. We believe life 
success emerges from the passion and perseverance we 
develop through the relationships that give our lives 
meaning. 

3. Social Justice- We provide the scaffolding children and 
students need to offset the structural imbalances of our 
society today and demand just systems for tomorrow. 
We believe South Africa will transform into a prosperous 
society for all if we acknowledge, understand and correct 
historical and ongoing injustice and inequality. 

Our ambition is to grow holistic education environments, on 
playgrounds, in classrooms, on campuses and at workplaces. 
To unleash tomorrow’s leaders and to realise the potential of 
all orphaned and vulnerable children to change society.  

With this in mind, our three new pillars emerged that will 
allow us to benchmark our success as an organisation:

•  Deliver world-leading holistic education programmes 
with proven effectiveness.

• Grow the number of young people we serve, directly and 
indirectly.

• Advocate for holistic education, fully preparing for the  
4th Industrial revolution.

 
Tomorrow Trust is entering an exciting new phase, growing 
our reach and impact. If South Africa is going to turn the 
corner and see the dividends of the investments we are 
all making in our children’s education we all need to work 
better together, learn faster and amplify our impact. 

In this era of rapid technological and social change, no 
field is experiencing more innovation than education, and 
Tomorrow Trust will make sure that these changes do not 
leave our orphaned and vulnerable children further behind. 

We would like to thank all our partners for their continued 
investment to the Tomorrow Trust, and the impact that they 
are making to change the lives of children and youth in 
South Africa.

We would also like to thank the Capital Hotel Group and SLR 
Photography (Pty) Ltd for their assistance and generosity.

Together we are creating conscious leaders of Tomorrow!

 TOMORROW TRUST

EVENTS
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TOUGH MUDDER

Tough Mudder isn’t a race, it’s a challenge. Its 8km or 16km 
of mud and obstacles specifically designed to test your 
teamwork and toughness. Our Tomorrow Trust team was 
yet again challenged and inspired to tackle 16 Km’s of hill 
climbs, obstacles, and swims. 

Tomorrow Trust partnered with Tough Mudder to help raise 
awareness around the work that Tomorrow Trust does and 

were fortunate to have one obstacle dedicated to our cause. 
Our aim this year was to double the money raised to support 
more tertiary students in our programme. This event was 
open to the public and we were ecstatic that a team from 
Teraco in the Western Cape joined our mission to overcome 
these fun-filled obstacles.  
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CLIFFE DEKKER HOFMEYR WORK READINESS  
& WELLNESS PROGRAMME

Tomorrow Trust works closely with various partners 
to offer holistic support to their existing programmes. 
This year, we partnered with Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr to 
provide comprehensive wellness and work readiness 
programmes for their final year Law students. As part of the 
programme, Tomorrow Trust ran a 3-day workshop series 
in Johannesburg and Cape Town, facilitating several topics 
including Emotional Intelligence, Leadership Skills, Conflict 
Management Skills and Self-care in the workplace. In 
addition to this, the students received individual counselling 
sessions once a month providing them with a safe space to 
explore various aspects of their personal and professional 
development. 

STELLENBOSCH UNIVERSITY RESIDENCE 
PROGRAMME

During the course of 2019, Tomorrow Trust ran several 
workshops for the LLL residence programme at Stellenbosch 
University. Following various discussions with the head of 
the residence programme, a need was identified to equip 
the students under this programme with various skills to 
prepare them for the transition into the world of work. 
As a result of Tomorrow Trust’s current work in this space, 
the university requested us to facilitate several workshops 
on various topics for its students including Emotional 
Intelligence,  Conflict Management and Communication. 

 TOMORROW TRUST

LEADING THE WAY FORWARD

ONE OF TOMORROW TRUST’S KEY PILLARS IS TO ADVOCATE FOR HOLISTIC EDUCATION, FULLY 
PREPARING FOR THE 4TH INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION. THIS PILLAR HAS PROVIDED US WITH THE 

OPPORTUNITY TO SHARE BEST PRACTISE AND OPEN OUR ORGANISATION TO DEEPER MORE 
MEANINGFUL COLLABORATION OPPORTUNITIES WITH OTHER STAKEHOLDERS.

3
WELLNESS & WORK 

READINESS WORKSHOPS 
WERE FACILITATED 
TO LLL RESIDENCE 

PROGRAMME AT 
STELLENBOSCH 

UNIVERSITY.

30
FINAL YEAR LAW STUDENTS BENEFITED 

FROM THE WELLNESS & WORK READINESS 
PROGRAMME IN 2019.
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YES INITIATIVE

The YES programme encourages corporates to contribute 
to empowerment in areas of national priority – addressing 
youth unemployment and upskilling the youth through job 
placement. 

The Tomorrow Trust has played an active role in collaborating 
with various stakeholders to provide hands-on holistic 
workshops and counselling to support the implementation 
of this programme into the working world. We aim to ensure 
the retention of youth as well as provide a comprehensive 
experience that will make each youth thrive in the working 
world.  

During 2019-2020 we worked closely with Komatsu to 
support 40 YES Youth in the work integrated experience at the 
company, in receiving additional tailored work readiness and 
wellness support from the Psychologists on the Tertiary Team 
at Tomorrow Trust. This included monthly group sessions to 
evaluate the progress of the youth in the workspace, as well 
as workshops focusing on equipping the youth with the skills 
they need to maximise their performance and the experience 
while working at the company. 

STUDENT SUCCESS CONFERENCE

For the past year, Tomorrow Trust has been an active 
member of the National Bursary Support Providers Forum. 
This forum brings together various bursary support 
organisations to share their learning’s and findings within 
the space. With a passion for student wellness and support, 
it was no surprise that when the Forum decided to organise 
the first conference of its kind in South Africa, the Tomorrow 
Trust stepped up to be involved. 

Not only were we part of the organising committee of what 
resulted in being a largely successful event, but Tomorrow 
Trust also facilitated two of the break-away sessions at the 
conference discussing resilience and wellness as well as the 
importance of mental health interventions. 

Tomorrow Trust continues to remain involved with 
the Bursary Providers Community of Practice Forum, 
regularly partaking in discussions and dialogue with other 
organisations similar to ours as well as with NSFAS to 
explore and identify ways of possible collaboration as well 
as re-evaluate the role Tomorrow Trust plays in the higher 
education space. 

40
YOUTH RECEIVED 

HOLISTIC SUPPORT 
FROM TOMORROW TRUST 

WORKING TOGETHER WITH 
THE YES INITIATIVE.

BREAK-AWAY SESSIONS AT THE 
BURSARY SUPPORT PROVIDERS FORUM 

CONFERENCE WERE FACILITATED BY 
TOMORROW TRUST, DISCUSSING 

RESILIENCE AND WELLNESS AS WELL 
AS THE IMPORTANCE OF MENTAL 

HEALTH INTERVENTIONS.

2
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TOMORROW TRUST 
PARTICIPATED IN THE  

25TH ANNUAL PSYCHOLOGICAL 
SOCIETY OF SOUTH AFRICA’S 

CONGRESS IN 2019. 

TOMORROW TRUST PRESENTED ON THE 
TOPIC OF ‘SOCIAL CONNECTEDNESS’ AND 

PROVIDED EXAMPLES ON HOW TOMORROW 
TRUST USES THIS CONCEPT AS A WAY OF 

PROACTIVELY TARGETING MENTAL HEALTH 
ISSUES IN OUR TERTIARY BENEFICIARIES.

THE 25TH ANNUAL PSYSSA CONGRESS 

The 25th Anniversary Congress, the Psychological 
Society of South Africa was hosted in September 
2019. We were fortunate to be chosen to present 
at this conference with the likes of Dr Dlamini 
who is currently serving as the Chancellor of the 
University of Witwatersrand and other well-known 
psychologists. 

As part of Prof. Anthony Pillay’s symposium 
addressing mental health challenges when 
working with tertiary students, Stacey Rontiris our 
Counselling Psychologist and Head of Programmes 
presented on the topic of Social Connectedness and 
how the Tomorrow Trust makes use of this to target 
mental health concerns of its beneficiaries.

SAGEA

SAGEA (South African Graduate Employers Association) 
is a not for profit professional association dedicated to 
connecting and advancing graduate employment. They 
are the hub of the industry, making use of synergies, 
resourcefulness and insights to bring global best practice to 
our members, and elevate the profession. 

The Tomorrow Trust was thrilled to have been selected to 
present at the November conference on the Work Readiness 
and Wellness Programme run during the course of 2019 
for Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr. Stacey Rontiris, our Counselling 
Psychologist and Head of Programmes presented with 
Boipelo Mathodlana, Graduate Programme Manager at Cliffe 
Dekker Hofmeyr. 

SHARING GOOD PRACTISE – HCI FOUNDATION 
STAKEHOLDER MEETING

HCI Foundation is one of Tomorrow Trust’s newest partners. 
Each year they host a good practice stakeholder meeting to 
share best practice with their partners. Tomorrow Trust was 
invited to present to 80 of their stakeholders on growing 
sustainable and effective organisations. 

Tomorrow Trust showcased how best we fundraise and our 
approach to ensuring we are sustainable and effective as 
an organisation. We are fortunate to be able to network and 
share our learning’s with many other stakeholders.



ZANELE MAHLANGU
Zanele Mahlangu graduated with BEng Chemical 
Engineering degree from the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary 
Programme in 2018 following the completion of her high 
school qualification with us. In 2019, Zanele received the 
opportunity and funding to study her Master’s Degree at 
the Tsinghua University in Beijing (China) as a Schwarzman 
Scholar. The Schwarzman Scholars Programme is designed 
to prepare young leaders to deepen understanding between 
China and the rest of the world. 

Schwarzman Scholars is the first scholarship created to 
respond to the geopolitical landscape of the 21st Century. 
Whether in politics, business or science, the success of 
future leaders around the world will depend upon an 
understanding of China’s role in global trends. We are 
very proud of Zanele’s achievement and look forward to 
witnessing the opportunities that she embraces after her 
Masters.

KGABO SEKGALAGANE

Kgabo Sekgalagane graduated with Bachelor of Pharmacy 
from the Tomorrow Trust Tertiary Programme in 2018. 
Following his graduation, he was one of the delegates who 
attended the World Merit Summit in Morocco. The World 
Merit Summit is one of our most important annual events. 

It brings together 500 young leaders; World Merit 
community and youth activists from around the globe, 
each of whom is excited to connect, learn, share and work 
together to develop a strategy for significant impact framed 
by the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals.
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 TOMORROW TRUST GRADUATES

LEADING THE WAY FORWARD
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 TOMORROW TRUST

SUSTAINABILITY

1

A Guide to Realising your Dreams-A Workbook-

BRENT FEINBERG& KIM NORMAND FEINBERG

 10% 

R1,2 
MILLION

 70% 

The Tomorrow Trust is a niche on its own within the 
NPO sector. We have a clear exit strategy that empowers 
orphaned and vulnerable learners through education to 
become self-sustainable self-reliable individuals. We are 
transparent and results-driven to ensure the betterment of 
our beneficiaries. The Tomorrow Trust is driven to ensure 
the best impact is delivered as well as focused on our 
mission and vision.

WE ARE CURRENTLY ENGAGED IN AND 
HAVE SECURED A BBBEE DEAL THAT 

WILL PROVIDE US WITH FUNDING (IN 
THE LONG-TERM) THAT WILL FORM 

PART OF OUR ENDOWMENT. 

OVER THE LAST 10 YEARS BY 
TOMORROW TRUST ALUMNI TO 

SUPPORT OTHER LEARNERS IN THE 
TOMORROW TRUST.

TOMORROW TRUST PARTNERS WITH RELATE 
BRACELETS

Relate bracelets are handmade and sold to make a difference 
and change lives. As a 100% not-for-profit social enterprise, 
the majority of our revenue is donated to credible causes. 
Tomorrow Trust uses these bracelets as a way of silently 
generating income for our organisational costs.  

Lastly, we have partnered with Free the Mind Co who 
provides Tomorrow Trust with a dynamic reader, activity and 
workbook called Freeing Freddie – The Dream Weaver. 

CONTRIBUTED BY AUTHORS OF THEIR 
PROFIT FROM BOOK SALES, TO SUPPORT 
UNSPONSORED LEARNERS IN THE  
TOMORROW TRUST.

OF THEIR SALARIES CONTRIBUTED 
BY OUR TERTIARY SECONDARY 

GRADUATES (ALUMNI), ONCE IN 
STABLE EMPLOYMENT FOR TWO YEARS, 
AS THEIR WAY OF GIVING BACK TO THE 

ORGANISATION AND SUPPORTING 
OTHER CHILDREN AND YOUTH IN A 

SITUATION SIMILAR TO THEIRS. 
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GOVERNMENTAL PARTNERS
Department of Social Development
Gautrain Management Agency

CORPORATE & FOUNDATION 
PARTNERS

Amicorp South Africa (Pty) Ltd  
Anglo American Chairman Fund 
Aurogen Pharmaceuticals
Balwin Foundation
Brait Foundation
Brooks & Luyt  
House of Busby
Cell C 
Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr
Concor Construction 
CSS Credit Solution
Danaher Holding South Africa Trust 
Datatec 
Didi & Friends Foundation
Discovery Fun Factory  
DNI  
Ericcson 
ETHOS
Euromonitor International

Gerald & Shirley Leissner Bursary 
Glencore 
Grey Matter Thinking  
RB Hagart Trust 
HCI Foundation 
Komatsu 
Kuper Legh 
Makro 
Merck 
Mimecast  
Monocle Solution
Aurogen Pharmaceuticals
Murray & Roberts 
Nedbank Education Private Wealth  
Oppenheimer Memorial Trust
PepsiCo South Africa 
Petersburg Foundation 
Sage Foundation
Teraco Data Environments
Texton Properties Fund
Timken 
Uber 
Kirsh Family Foundation
Wood 
Zensar Technologies

INDIVIDUAL DONORS
Anderson Pimenta  
Andrea Forsht 
Bruno Gruwez 
Susann Ribe 
Mishkah Kolbe  
Martin Sacks
Kholekile Ndamase  
Jan Jordaan  
Kelly Morkel 
Edwin Edelstein
Dr Evangeline Mthethwa  
Abdul Qadr Hassen 
Euromonitor International Staff 
Members
Tim Smith
Germano Cardoso

PARTNERING ORGANISATIONS

Umbambiswano
Lalela

JUNIOR PARTNERING HOSTING 
SCHOOLS
Rosebank Primary School
Maryvale Primary School
Montrose Primary School
Pinelands North Primary School  
– Western Cape

SENIOR PARTNERING 
HOSTING SCHOOLS

Crawford College Sandton
Maryvale College
Redhill College
King Edward VII School (KES)
St Andrews School For Girls

IN-KIND DONATIONS

The Capital 20 West
SLR Photography
BDO
GIBS Business School
Santa Shoe Box
Levis Strauss South Africa
Van Schaik
Nicole Levy (Optometrist)
Dr Pestana (Dentist)
Formula 1
Health Warriors
Kirstenbosch Botancila Gardens
SAPS Rosebank
Pinelands Library

 TOMORROW TRUST

PARTNERS

FANSA
Hooked on Books
Nelson Mandela Memory Centre
Little Yogis
Siyavula
BBBEE online
Ideal Toys
Answer Series
St John’s Ambulance Service
Maropeng
Douglasdale Farm
B&C Crafts
Nahana Foundation
IQ Business
Investec
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FOR THE DESIGN OF 
THIS ANNUAL REPORT, 

TOMORROW TRUST 
WOULD LIKE TO 

EXPRESS THEIR SINCERE 
APPRECIATION TO:

083 408 8527

Design and layout by:
GIVING IS NOT JUST ABOUT THE DONATION, 

 IT ’S ABOUT MAKING A DIFFERENCE! TOMORROW 
TRUST WOULD LIKE TO THANK EACH OF 

OUR DONORS WHO CONTRIBUTED TO THE 
TOMORROW TRUST LEARNERS DURING 2019. 
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(Registration number IT6728/05)

Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2019

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile: South Africa

The principal objectives of the trust are to generate, apply 
and convey income and/or capital for the education of 
those children who are affected, directly or indirectly, with 
HIV/AIDS.

Trustees and  JH Phalane 
key management: J Donald
 L Matakata
 SR Midlane
 ST Mensah
 LV Matai

Registered office: Isle of Houghton, Parktown
 36 Boundary Road
 Old Trafford Four - 2nd floor
 Houghton Estate
 2198

Postal address:  PO Box 1812
 Saxonwold
 Johannesburg
 2132

Auditors:  BDO South Africa Incorporated
 Registered Auditors

Preparer: The financial statements were  
 independently compiled under the
 supervision of:
 P Joubert
 Professional Accountant (SA)
 

Trust registration number: IT6728/05

Issued: 21 April 2020  

Contents

Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval  68

Trustees’ Report  69

Independent Auditor’s Report  70-71

Statement of Financial Position  72

Statement of Profit or Loss and  
Other Comprehensive Income  73

Statement of Changes in Funding  74

Statement of Cash Flows  75

Accounting Policies  76-78

Notes to the Financial Statements  79-86

The following supplementary information does not  
form part of the financial statements and is unaudited:

Detailed Income Statement 87-88



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 201968

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval

The trustees are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial 
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the trust as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
period then ended, in conformity with the basis of accounting as set out in Note 1 to the financial statements. The external auditors 
are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in Note 1 to the financial statements 
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates.

The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the trust and 
place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to meet these responsibilities, the 
board of trustees set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards 
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate 
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the trust and all employees are 
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the trust’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the trust is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 
known forms of risk across the trust. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the trust endeavours to minimise it by ensuring 
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures 
and constraints. 

The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any 
system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The trustees have reviewed the trust’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2020 and, in the light of this review and the 
current financial position, They are satisfied that the trust has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future. 

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the trust’s financial statements. The financial 
statements have been examined by the trust’s external auditors and their report is presented on page 70-71.

The financial statements set out on pages 69 to 86, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
board of trustees on 21 April 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

____________________________________________  ____________________________________________
Trustee        Trustee



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2019 69

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Trustees’ Report

The trustees have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust for the year ended  
31 December 2019.
1.  Nature of business
 The principal objectives of the trust are to generate, apply and convey income and/or capital for the education of those children who 

are affected, directly or indirectly, with HIV/AIDS.
 The operating results and state of affairs of the trust are set out in the attached financial statements and do not, in our opinion, 

require any further comment.
 Net surplus of the trust was R 1 307 509 (2018: R 294 803 deficit).
2.  Beneficiaries
 Those children and/or youth who are orphaned, vulnerable and/or living in poverty.
3.  Trustees and key management
 The trustees in office at the date of this report are as follows:
 Name   Changes 
 JH Phalane
 J Donald
 JT Cook   Resigned 04 October 2019
 L Matakata
 SR Midlane
 ST Mensah
 LV Matai
4.  Interest in subsidiary company
 Details of material interest in the subsidiary company are presented in note 3 to the financial statements.
5.  Events after the reporting period
 The trustees are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report, not 

otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the trust or the 
results of its operations at the date of this report.

6.  Going concern
 The trustees have reviewed the Trust’s cash flow forecast for January to December 2020 and in light of this review and the current 

Covid-19 pandemic, they are satisfied that the trust has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence in the 
foreseeable future.

7.  Auditors
 BDO South Africa Incorporated were newly appointed as auditors for the trust for 2019.
8.  In kind donations
 In kind donations to the value of R 1 764 891 (2018: R 4 747 741) were received during the year under review.
 The in kind donations received included rent, advertising, venue hire, toys, life camp, course fees etc. These are analysed by 

department as follows:
 Holiday and Saturday School  R 1 295 318
 Post-Secondary School   R 258 895
 Organisational expenditure  R 210 679
9.  Trustee remuneration
 Trustees were not remunerated for time or travel costs incurred.
 Key management remuneration
 Tomorrow Trust employees are remunerated via a salary structure benchmarked with the ARGRS – July 2019 – NPO General Staff 

Salaries, Benefits and Employment Regulations Survey. Tomorrow Trust aims to remunerate at the median of benchmarked positions. 
The CEO’s Total Cost to Company is at 0.86 of the median quartile for CEO/Executive Directors of NPO’s with a comparable staff 
compliment and turnover, and the ratio between CEO remuneration and lowest FTE is less than 10x.



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 201970

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees of The Tomorrow Trust

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Tomorrow Trust (the trust) set out on pages 72 to 86, which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 1019, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the financial 
statements of The Tomorrow Trust for the year ended 31 December 2019 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis 
of accounting described in note 1 to the financial statements and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
We were appointed as auditors of the Trust on 09 January 2010 and thus did not observe the counting of the physical inventories at the 
beginning of the year. We were unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning inventory quantities held at 31 December 2018. 
Since opening inventories enter into the determination of the financial performance and cash flows, we were unable to determine whether 
adjustments might have been necessary in respect of the profit for the year reported in the statement of comprehensive income and the 
net cash flows from operating activities reported in the statement of cash flows.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the trust in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct 
far  Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional 
Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to 
performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance 
with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes 
are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(including International Independence Standards) respectively. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with the Trust’s own accounting policies to satisfy the financial information needs of the trustees and beneficiaries. As a result, 
the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document titled 
“The Tomorrow Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019”, which includes the Trustees’ Report as required 
by the Trust Deed. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

BOO South Africa Incorporated
Registration number: 1995/002310/21
Practice number: 905526
VAT number: 4910148685
National Executive: PR Badrick • HN Bhaga·Muljee • OF Botha • BJ de Wet • HCS lopes (Johannesburg Office Managing Partner) • E Singh • SM Samaroo  
• IM Scott • ME Stewart (Chief Executive) • 1-16 Willimott
The trust’s principal place of business is at 52 Corlett Drive, lllovo, Johannesburg, where a list of directors’ names is available for inspection. BDO South 
Africa Incorporated, a South African personal liability trust, is a member of BDO International limited, a UK trust limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Trustees of The Tomorrow Trust

Responsibilities of the Trustees for the Financial Statements
The trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting 
described in note 1 and the requirements of the Trust Deed, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to 
liquidate the trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the trust’s internal control.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by the trustees.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the trust 
to cease to continue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

__________________________________
BDO South Africa Incorporated
Registered Auditors

GC Smith
Director
Registered Auditor

21 April 2020

Wanderers Office Park
52 Corlett Drive
lllovo, 2196
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2019

   2019 2018 
  Note(s) R R

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment  2  295 244  73 109

Investment in subsidiary  3  120  120

Unlisted investment  4  750 000  750 000

   1 045 364  823 229

Current Assets

Inventories  6  720 160  766 316

Trade and other receivables  5  383 757  659 535

Cash and cash equivalents  7  6 987 571  7 805 098

   8 091 488  9 230 949

Total Assets   9 136 852  10 054 178

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Accumulated surplus   7 094 951  5 787 442

   7 095 451  5 787 942

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables  8  1 759  -

Deferred income  9  2 039 522  3 516 116

Loan from related party  10  120  750 120

   2 041 401  4 266 236

Total Equity and Liabilities   9 136 852  10 054 178
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

   2019 2018 
  Note(s) R R

Revenue  11  20 568 977  20 234 593

Other income  12  478 725  200 898

Operating expenses   (21 119 667)  (21 299 103)

Operating deficit  13  (71 965)  (863 612)

Investment revenue  14  1 585 434  568 811

Surplus (deficit) before taxation   1 513 469  (294 801)

Taxation  15  (205 960)  -

Total comprehensive surplus (deficit) for the year   1 307 509  (294 801)
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The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
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Statement of Changes in Funding

     Trust capital  Accumulated Total equity
   surplus
  R  R  R

Balance at 01 January 2018   500  6 082 243  6 082 743

Total comprehensive deficit for the year   -  (294 801)  (294 801)

Balance at 01 January 2019   500  5 787 442  5 787 942

Total comprehensive income for the year   -  1 307 509  1 307 509

Balance at 31 December 2019   500  7 094 951  7 095 451
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The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
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Statement of Cash Flows

   2019 2018 
  Note(s) R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash (used in) generated from operations  16  (1 874 090)  326 451

Interest income   555 634  568 811

Dividends received   1 029 800  -

Tax paid  17  (205 960)  -

Net cash from operating activities   (494 616)  895 262

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  2  (326 912)  (37 980)

Sale of property, plant and equipment  2  4 001  -

Net cash from investing activities   (322 911)  (37 980)

Total cash movement for the year   (817 527)  857 282

Cash at the beginning of the year   7 805 098  6 947 816

Total cash at end of the year  7  6 987 571  7 805 098



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 201976

1.  Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

 The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the accounting policies as set out 
below. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. They are presented in South African Rands.

 These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1  Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
 No significant estimates and judgements have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the trust holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are 
expected to be used for more than one period.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the trust, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

 Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

 Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses, except for land which is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

 Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged to 
write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects 
the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the trust.

 The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

 Item    Depreciation method  Average useful life
 Office equipment   Straight line   6 years
 Computer equipment   Straight line   3 years
  

1.3 Consolidation

 No consolidated financial statements are prepared.

1.4  Investment in subsidiary

 Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting Policies
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1.5  Financial instruments

 Initial measurement
 Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial measurement 

of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit) unless the arrangement constitutes, in 
effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate 
of interest for a similar debt instrument.

 Financial instruments at amortised cost
 These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the 

standard, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified 
as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, 
unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.

 At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the 
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable 
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

 Financial instruments at cost
 Commitments to receive a loan are measured at cost less impairment.

 Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably without undue cost 
or effort are measured at cost less impairment.

Financial instruments at fair value
 All other financial instruments whose fair value can otherwise be measured reliably, without undue cost or effort, are measured at 

fair value through surplus and deficit.

 If a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available without undue cost or effort, then the fair value at the last date that such a 
reliable measure was available is treated as the cost of the instrument. The instrument is then measured at cost less impairment 
until management are able to measure fair value without undue cost or effort.

1.6  Leases

 A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All 
other leases are operating leases.

 Operating leases – lessee
 Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:

• another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the payments are not 
on that basis, or

• the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or statistics) to 
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

 Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting Policies
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1.7  Inventories

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price, on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

1.8  Employee benefits

 Short-term employee benefits
 The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as leave pay 

and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted.

1.9  Revenue

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that the trust has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to 
the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the trust. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts.

 Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

 Dividends are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the trust’s right to receive payment has been established.

1.10  Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.11  Trust capital

 Trust capital is classified as equity.

1.12  Deferred income

 Deferred income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and comprises of donations received in 
advance.

 Deferred income is recognised when cash is received that is specifically mandated to be spent on projects in the future.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting Policies
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   2019 2018 
    R R
    Restated

2.  Property, plant and equipment
 
  2019  2018

  Cost  Accumulated Carrying Cost Accumulated Carrying
   depreciation value   depreciation value

Office equipment  126 434  (114 828)  11 606  126 434  (101 035)  25 399

Computer equipment  559 723  (276 085)  283 638  246 918  (199 208)  47 710

Total   686 157  (390 913)  295 244  373 352  (300 243)  73 109

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

   Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Closing  
   balance    balance

Office equipment   25 399  -  -  (13 793)  11 606

Computer equipment   47 710  326 912  (5 573)  (85 411)  283 638

   73 109  326 912  (5 573)  (99 204)  295 244

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

    Opening Additions Depreciation Closing  
    balance   balance

Office equipment    39 192  -  (13 793)  25 399

Computer equipment    32 462  37 980  (22 732)  47 710

    71 654  37 980  (36 525)  73 109

3.  Investment in subsidiary
Name of subsidiary    % holding % holding Carrying Carrying
    2019 2018 amount 2019 amount 2018

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    100.00 %  100.00 %  120  120

The carrying amount of the subsidiary are shown gross of impairment losses.

Malviprox Proprietary Limited acts as a dormant investment holding entity that acquired a 10% shareholding in a Special Purpose Entity 
(SPE) Clusten 16 (Pty) Ltd which in turn owns 25% in Zensar South Africa (Pty) Ltd.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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   2019 2018 
    R R
    Restated

4.  Unlisted investment

Name of subsidiary    % holding % holding Carrying Carrying
    2019 2018 amount 2019 amount 2018

Spirax Proprietary Limited    51.49 %  51.49 %  750 000  750 000

The carrying amount of the unlisted investment is shown gross of impairment losses.

The company carries on the business of the supply of steam traps, strainers, air vents, liquid drainers etc. and associated spares as well as 
the maintenance of such products. The company operates in South Africa.

The board of Spirax SARCO Services SA Proprietary Limited shall comprise of not less than 3 directors. 

Spirax SARCO SA (or its successors-in-title) shall be entitled by written notice to the company to nominate 2 persons for appointment 
as directors on the board.

The Tomorrow Trust shall be entitled by written notice to the company to nominate 1 person for appointment as a director on the board.

5.  Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables    261 883  568 980

Prepayments    8 050  -

Deposits    72 900  59 631

Student loans    40 924  30 924

    383 757  659 535

6.  Inventories

Inventories    720 160  766 316

Inventory comprises primarily educational readers, workbooks and activity books developed as teaching and marketing materials and 
revenue generation for Tomorrow Trust. Management and Trustees note the slow movement of inventory and have put in place targets 
to reduce the stock by 25% a year over the next four years. Management will not write off any value in the near term as publishers project 
the fair market value to remain above the cost price, and the material remains relevant as internal and external teaching and marketing 
materials.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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   2019 2018 
    R R
    Restated

7.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand    162  105

Bank balances    1 217 089  630 127

Short-term deposits    5 770 320  7 174 866

    6 987 571  7 805 098

8.  Trade and other payables

Other payables    1 759  -

9.  Deferred revenue

Deferred Income    2 039 522  3 516 116

Deferred income is funding which is ring-fenced or which relates to a future period is deferred to the next period.

10.  Loan from related party

Subsidiary

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    (120)  (120)

The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and has no fixed repayment terms.
 
Unlisted investment

Spirax Sarco Services South Africa (Proprietary) Limited    -  (750 000)

The Trust entered into a loan agreement with Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited in terms of which the company shall 
advance a loan to the Trust for the purpose of subscribing for 52 ordinary shares in the company, which loan shall be repayable on the 
date on which the first dividends are declared by the company or the date by when the Trust has received sufficient dividends to settle 
the loan. (Refer notes 4 and 14)

11.  Revenue

Donations    20 568 977  20 234 593

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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   2019 2018 
    R R
    Restated

12.  Other income

Administration and management fees received    95 905  -

Book sales    382 820  134 132

Other income    -  66 766

    478 725  200 898 

13.  Operating deficit

Operating deficit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating lease charges

Premises

• Contractual amounts    725 246  660 514

Property, plant and equipment    (1 572)  -

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment    99 204  36 525

Employee costs - Administration staff    1 991 288  2 016 873

Employee costs - Teachers    3 048 145  -

14.  Investment revenue

Dividend revenue

Received from unlisted investment (note 19)    1 029 800  -

Interest revenue

Bank     555 634  568 811

    1 585 434  568 811

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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   2019 2018 
    R R
    Restated

15.  Taxation

Major components of the tax expense

Current taxation

Dividend withholding tax    205 960  -

The Tomorrow Trust is an approved Public Benefit Organisation. The income generated by the Trust is exempt for taxation purposes in 
terms of Section 10(1)(cN).

16.  Cash (used in) generated from operations

Surplus (deficit) before taxation    1 513 469  (294 801)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation    99 204  36 525

Deficit on sale of assets    1 572  -

Dividends received    (1 029 800)  -

Interest received    (555 634)  (568 811)

Other non-cash settlement of related party loan    (750 000)  -

Changes in working capital:

Inventories    46 156  (148 859)

Trade and other receivables    275 778  59 330

Trade and other payables    1 759  (108 130)

Deferred income    (1 476 594)  1 351 197

    (1 874 090)  326 451

17.  Tax paid

Current tax for the year recognised in surplus or deficit    (205 960)  -

18.  Commitments

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year    185 857  -

Operating lease payments represent rental paid for business premises.
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19. Related parties

Relationships

Trustees   JH Phalane

   L Matakata

   SR Midlane

   ST Mensah

   LV Matai

Members of key management    James Donald (Chief Executive Officer)

Subsidiary   Malviprox Proprietary Limited

Appointed as directors   JH Phalane

   L Matakata

Unlisted investment    Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited

Appointed as director   JH Phalane

Other    The Kusasa Trust

Appointed as trustees   JH Phalane

   LV Matai

   J Donald

Related party balances and transactions with key management personnel of the trust

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties

Malviprox Proprietary Limited    120  120

Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited    -  750 000

    120  750 120
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    R R
    Restated

19. Related parties (continued)

Related party transactions

Administration fees (received from) paid to related parties

Zenzar SA Proprietary Limited (note 3)    (42 000)  (42 000)

The Kusasa Trust    (53 905)  -

    (95 905)  (42 000)

The trustees wish to note that the Trust has entered into an agreement with The Kusasa Trust in respect of management fees to be 
received. Per the Trust Deed of the Kusasa Trust, the maximum amount that may be paid equates to 15% of the total funding advanced 
for bursaries.

Royalties paid

B Feinberg    78 013  65 123

K Feinberg    79 399  -

    157 412  65 123

Royalties are paid on the sale of books in terms of an agreement entered into between the ex-CEO and her son (related parties) and the 
Trust. In terms of the agreement the trust will manage the printing and sale of the books that were written by the related parties and 
then a percentage of gross proceeds were to be paid over to the related parties.

Dividends received

Spirax Sarco Services South Africa Proprietary Limited    (1 029 800)  -

Donations received

Zenzar SA Proprietary Limited (note 3)    (438 322)  (313 500)
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20. Prior period error

The Trust acquired an investment in an unlisted company which had not been recorded in the prior year (Refer note 4). As the amount is 
material it will be required to be disclosed as a prior period error. The error has no effect on prior period profit or loss.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Extract From Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2018   As previously Adjustment  Restated
   stated

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Unlisted investment   -  750 000  750 000

   As previously Adjustment  Restated
   stated

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Loan from related party   120  750 000  750 120

21.  Going concern

The trustees have reviewed the Trust’s cash flow forecast for January to December 2020 and in light of this review and the current Covid-19 
pandemic, they are satisfied that the trust has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence in the forseeable future.

22.  Events after the reporting period

The trustees are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report, not otherwise 
dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the trust or the results of its operations 
at the date of this report.

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements



TOMORROW TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 2019 87

The Tomorrow Trust
(Registration number IT6728/05)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Detailed Income Statement

   2019  2018
  Note(s) R R

Revenue

Donations     11  20 568 977  20 234 593

Other income

Administration and management fees received    19  95 905  -

Book sales      382 820  134 132

Other income      -  66 766

Dividends received     14  1 029 800  -

Interest received     14  555 634  568 811

      2 064 159  769 709

Expenses (Refer to page 88)      (21 119 667)  (21 299 103)

Surplus (deficit) before taxation     1 513 469  (294 801)

Taxation     15  (205 960)  -

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year     1 307 509  (294 801)

 
The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited
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   2019  2018
  Note(s) R R

Operating expenses

Accounting and secretarial fees      (29 900)  (21 611)

Advertising      (16 188)  (97 940)

Alumni - NSFAS      (94 598)  (1 037)

Audit fees      (116 009)  -

Bad debts      -  (40 500)

Bank charges      (12 875)  (11 290)

Cleaning      (15 000)  (12 100)

Computer expenses      (33 544)  (31 877)

Consulting and professional fees      (125 131)  (106 733)

Cost of books      (40 472)  (25 694)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments     (99 204)  (36 525)

Employee costs - Administration staff     (1 991 288)  (2 016 873)

Employee costs - Teachers      (3 048 145)  (3 202 141)

Entertainment      (21 155)  (33 312)

Gifts       (3 036)  (206)

Insurance      (93 240)  (77 766)

Lease rentals on operating leases      (725 246)  (660 514)

Legal expenses      (50 944)  (1 514)

Postage and courier      (2 477)  (2 061)

Printing and stationery      (36 507)  (32 433)

Profit and loss on sale of assets      (1 572)  -

Repairs and maintenance      (1 514)  (920)

Royalties      (157 412)  (65 123)

Security      (4 949)  (7 354)

Staff welfare      (17 387)  (7 724)

Student and learner accommodation     (2 610 971)  (2 890 452)

Student and learner education      (2 756 390)  (3 251 507)

Student and learner food and transport     (5 963 844)  (5 669 063)

Student and learner general expenses     (2 831 028)  (2 558 430)

Telephone and fax      (70 612)  (160 928)

Training      (75 966)  (36 139)

Travel - local      (21 145)  (60 657)

Travel - overseas      (51 918)  (178 679)

      (21 119 667)  (21 299 103)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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